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JOHN R. P □□ LE, CPA 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

1 34 NORTHLAKE DRIVE 

HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075 

Independent Auditor Report 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Hohenwald, Tennessee 
Hohenwald, Tennessee 

Opiniotrs 

(6 1 5} B22-41 ?7 

I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and 
each major fund of the City of Hohenwald, Tennessee (the "City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and 
each major fund of the City, as of June 30 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and the 
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, State Street Aid Fund, Drug Fund and the Solid 
Waste Fund for the year then ended and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. My responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of my report. I am required to be independent of the City and to meet my other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to my audit. I believe that 
the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for tlte Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from matelial misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City' s ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor' s report that 
includes my opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 



therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In perfonning an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, I: 

❖ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
❖ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

❖ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

❖ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

❖ Conclude whether, in my judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the City's abilit)' to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

I am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audjt, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that 1 identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Required 
Supplementary Information, which includes the Management's Discussion and Analysis and the 
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and the Schedule of Contributions to the 
Employee Pension Plan, and the Changes in Total Liability and Relate Ratios be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 1 obtained 
during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

My audjt was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City' s basic financial statements. The supplementary information section, as listed in the 
table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is t10t a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such jnformation is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the audjting procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
witb auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the 
supplementary infonnation is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other /1tformatio11 - Introductory Section 

Management is responsible for the Introductory Section included in the annual report. The Introductory 
Section, as listed in the table of contents, does not include tbe basic financial statements and my auditor's 
report thereon .. My opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the Introductory Section, aud 
I do not express an opinion or any other assurance thereon. 

In connection with my audit of the basic financial statements, my responsibi !Hy is to read the Tntroductory 
Section and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the Introductory Section and basic 
financial statements, or the Introductory Section otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 
the work pe1fonned, I conclude that an uncorrected material misst&,tement of tbe Lntroductory Section 
exists, I am required to describe it in my report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated December 23, 
2022, on my consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City 's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City•s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

December 23, 2022 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Hohenwald. Tennessee (the City) we offer readers of lhe ity 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of lhe City for 
tbe fiscal year ended Jw1e JO 2022. The analysis focuses on significant financial position, budget 
changes and variances from the budget and specific issues related to foods and the economic 
factors affecting the City. Managements Djscussion and Analysis (MD&A) focuses on current 
year activities and resulting changes. 

Financial Highlights: 

The assets of the City of Hohenwald exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal 
y ar by $25, 83 334 Of this amount $5,890 573 (unrestricted Net Position) ma b used to meet 
the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The governments total Net 
Position increased by $790 838 primarily due to increases in local user revenues and a growing 
local economy producing increased sales tax revenues. Expenses ere $1,000. 63 higher than in 
the prior year primarily due to higher natural gas purchases and increased maintenan and repair 
costs. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's govemmental funds reported ending fund 
balances of $3,632,648 an increase of $692,362 in comparison to the prior ear. The ity 's 
governmental funds had capital asset purchases of $285,650. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $3,267,623 
or approximately 86% of the total general fund expenditures. 

The City's total debt increased by $92,075 as the Town boJTowed funds for the Water and Sewer 
system, while making all other required payments. 

Overview of the Financial Statements: 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Hohenwald's 
basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) 
go ernment-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial stat m nts, and (3) note to the iinandal 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements. The government-wide fman iaJ statements are de igned to pro ide readers 
with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The 
Statement of Net Position presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as Net Position. Over time, increases or decreases in Net 
Position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving 
or deteriorating. 
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The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's Net Position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. AJl changeB in Net Position are reported as soon as U1e 
UJ1detlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only resuJt in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected tax) . Both of the government-wide financial 
statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by truces and 
intergovernmentaJ revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended lo 
recover all or a significant portion of tb.eir costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities of the City of Hohenwald include general government, 
personnel, finance, parks, planning, police, fire, disposal service, streets and public works. The 
government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this report. 

A Fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated from specific activities or objectives. The City of Hohenwald, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. Govenunental Fw1ds are funds used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances 
of spendable resoorces available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government's near-tenn financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the infom1ation presented for governmental funds with similar 
infotmation presented for governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. blformation is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmentaJ fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the funds all of which are considered to be major 
funds. 

The Cjty of Hohenwald adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this 
budget. The basic financial statements can be found on pages 14-20 of this report. The notes 
provide addjtional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found 
on pages 28-50 of this report. 
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Financial Analysis of the Financial Statements --Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, Net Position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City of Hohenwald, assets exceeded liabilities by $25,483,334 at the 
close of the most recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City's assets reflects its investment in capitaJ assets e.g .. land 
buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure) less any related debt use to acquu·e thos 
assets that is still outstanding. Th City uses these capitaJ assets to provide services to ciliz ns· 
c nsequently the e assets are not available for future pending. Although the City s in e tm nt in 
its capital assets i reported net of related debt, it should b noted that the resources need d l 

repay this debt must be provided from others urces, since the capital assets themselves cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. 

City of Hohenwald's Net Position - 2022 

Governmental Business -Type 
Activities Activities 

Current and other assets $ 5 870,762 4,074.121 
Capital assets 5,501.797 2L523,15 
Total assets 11,372 559 25 597,275 

Deferred outflows 588,866 317,082 

Long-tenn liabilities outstanding 57,600 8,286,234 
Other liabilities 847.178 351,179 

Total liabilities 904 778 8,637,413 

Deferred inflows: 2,313,273 536,984 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 5.444,197 13,399,604 

Restricted 302,648 446,312 
Unrestricted 2,996,529 __ 894.044 

Total Net Position $ 8,743,374 16,739,960 

6 



City of Hohenwald's Net Position - 2021 

Governmental 
Activities 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows: 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net .Position 

$ 3,912,358 
5,612.3 17 
9,524,675 

259,872 

522,680 
490,462 

1,013,142 

845,382 

5,536,517 
322,723 

2,066,783 
$7,926,023 

Business -Type 
Activities 

3,728,648 
21.457.622 
25,186,270 

166,148 

8,119,636 
388,194 

8,507,830 

78,115 

13,444,347 
59,246 

3,262,880 
16,766,473 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 
The focus of the City ofHohenwald's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows and balances of resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City 's 
financing requirements in particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure to a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City's. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
uuassigned fund balance of the general fund was $3,267,623. As a measure oftbe general fund 's 
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total 
fund expeuditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 86% of total general fund 
expenditures. 

Business- Type Activities 

The Business-type funds Net Position decreased by $26,513 due to higher repair and maintenance 
and supply expenses than expected. 
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Comparison of revenues and expenses 2022 and 2021 

2022 2021 Variance 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 848,376 841 ,285 7,091 
Sales taxes 2,024,550 1,872,228 152,322 
Local tax revenue 534,387 453,860 80,527 
Income and excise taxes 36,353 27,720 8,633 
Miscellaneous 186,179 315,379 (129,200) 
Charges for services 6,093,235 5,558,614 534,621 
Operating contributions 336,672 187,384 149,288 
Capital contributions 0 448,971 (448,971} 

Total Revenues $10,059,752 $9,705,441 $354,311 

Expenses: 
General government 660,829 748,182 (87,353) 
Police department 1,430,963 1,351,318 79,645 
Fire department 328,680 310,800 17,880 
Animal control 6,952 14,708 (7,756) 
Public works 461 ,431 320,541 140,890 
Cemetery 13,827 13,775 52 
Parks 45,352 45,352 0 
Economic development 128,527 89,305 39,222 
Emergency servjces 364,377 373,944 (9,567) 
Golf Course 250,209 242,629 7,580 
Drug fund expenses 12,095 2,775 9,320 
Highway and streets 65,230 176.438 (111 ,208) 
Water and Sewer Fund 3,171,874 2,828,366 343,508 
Natural Gas 1,899,500 1,375,835 523,665 
Solid Waste 429,068 374,683 54,385 

Total Expenses $9,268,914 $8,268,651 $1,000,263 

Change in Net Position 790,838 1,436,790 (645,952) 
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Governmental Budgetary Highlights 
The City amended some of its departmental budgets during the year. See pages 21-27 for an 
analysis of the budgets. Amendments were made to the budget during the year to reflect the 
additional expenditures as directed by the Board. 

Capital Assets 
The City ofHohenwald's investment in capital assets from its governmental activities at June 30, 
2022, amounts to $5,501,797 (net of accumulated depreciation) and its business-type activities 
amounts to $21 ,523,154. This investment in capital assets is io land, buildings, improvements, 
machinery and equipment. The total increase in the City's investment in capital assets for the 
current fiscal year was 1,471,351. 

City ofHohenwald's Capital Assets-2022 

Land, buildings and improvement 
Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Net Capital Assets 

City of Hohenwald's Capital Assets- 2021 

Land, buildings and improvement 
Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Net Capital Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 6,887,817 
3,056.402 
(4,442,422) 

$ 5,501,797 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 6,858,578 
2,929.48] 
(4,175,742) 

$5,612,317 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$32,513,548 
3,177,972 

(14,168,366) 
$ 21.523.154 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 32,440,069 
2,345,179 

(13,327,626) 
$ 2L457,622 

Additional information on the City ofHohenwald's capital assets can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements section of this report. 

Long-term Debt 

The City has total debt of $8,628,030 of which $57,600 is general obligation debt for a sanitation 
truck and $446,880 in landfill post-closure costs)} $7,623,050 is debt of the Water and Sewer 
Utility system, and$500,500 is debt for the Natural Gas system. During the year, the City bo1TOwed 
for improvements to the Water and Sewer system. AlJ debts are being are paid as schedt1led. 

Additional information on the City of Hohenwald's long-term debt can be found in the notes to 
the financial statements section of this report. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates 

ln the 2022-2023 budget, General fund revenues and user charges are budgeted to increase from 
the 2021 -2022 budget year primarily due to increases in user charges and local revenues. The 
City's budget has benefited by an expanding commercial and retail base producing increased local 
sales tax receipts. Expenses are expected to remain stable during the 2022-2023 fiscal year. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2022-2023 :fiscal year. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Hohenwald, 
Tennessee's :finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to: 

Kyle Hamm 
City of Hohenwald 
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Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables 

Prepaid assets 

Inventory 

Net pension asset 

Capital assets not being dellreciated 

Cap~al assets, net of accumulated deprecia0on 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 
Deferred outtlows of resources - OPES 
Deferred outflows of resources • pension 

Total Deferred Out1lows of Resources 

Uabil~ies Deferred Inflows, and Net Poi@on 

Uabilaies: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued e,q>enses 
Tolal OPEl3 Liabllttv 
Long-term lfabttitfes: 
Post closure care cost 
PremTum on Long-term debt 
Due wilhfn one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Llabirlties 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Deferred inflows of resources - property tax 
Deferred inflows of resources • unspent grant funds 
Deferred inflows or resources• OPEB 
Deferred infloW5 er rescurees - pension 

To1a1 Oelerred Inflows of Resources 

fllet Posttion: 
Net Investment lo Capital Assets 
Restricted • Oebl Service 
Restncted - State street aid fund 
Restricted - On.rg fund 
Res\ncted • Solid Waste fund 
Unrestncted 

Total Net Po$Nlon 

CITY OF HOHl:NWALD, TENN{:-SSEE 

Statement of Net Position 

June ~o. 2022 

Governmental 
Actlvities 

3,879,433 

1,151,260 

35,058 

0 

805,01 1 

856,582 

4,645,215 

11,372,559 

63,702 
525 164 
588,866 

27,454 
150,285 
222,559 

446,880 
0 

18.700 
38.900 

904 778 

750,333 
565,684 
179,568 
817.668 

2,313.273 

5,444,197 
0 

127,941 
29,541 

145,166 
2,996,529 
s 743 37<1 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

,, 

Business-type 
Actlv,lles 

2,713,815 

596,470 

25,809 

304-,559 

433,468 

199,184 

21 323,970 

25,597,275 

S4,301 
282,7131 
317.082 

144,942 
66,397 

1'9,840 

0 
162,684 
765,365 

7,358,185 
8.637,413 

0 
0 

96,690 
440,294 
536,984 

13,399,604 
446,31 2 

0 
0 
0 

2,894,044 
rn,?39,sso 

Total 

6,593,2413 

1,747,730 

60,1367 

304,559 

1,238,479 

1,055,766 

25,969,185 

36,969,834 

98,003 
1307 945 
905 948 

172,396 
236,682 
342,399 

4-16,BBO 
162,684 
7134,065 

7~7,085 
9, 2.a, 

750,333 
565,684 
276,258 

1,257,982 
21aso.2st 

18,843,801 
446,312 
127,941 
29,541 

145,1 66 
5,690,573 

2§,463,33'1 



CITY OF HOHENWAlO, TENNESSEE 

Statem■nt of Actlvltias 

For tile Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Net (EXpenses) Revenue arid 
Program Reveoyes Ctiaages In lll~t eo5l!!M 

OperaUn11 Capital 
Fundlon/Prog™ Chall!es for Grant.sand Grants and Governmental Business-Type 

~ ~ QonlJ\but2ns ConlJl!l!Jl!2!li ~ ~ Total 

Government Activllfes: 
General government 660 ,629 32,436 167.A86 (440,907) 0 (440,907) 
Police. department , .◄30,963 162,402 13,600 0 (1 ,234,961) 0 (1 ,234,961~ 
Fire department 326,660 0 0 0 (328,680) 0 (326,680 
Animal control 6,952 0 0 0 (6,952) 0 (6,952) 
Public worl!s 461.431 0 0 0 (◄6 1 ,431) 0 (461,431) 
Cemetery 13,827 5,200 0 0 (8,627) 0 (8,627) 
Porn ◄5 ,352 0 0 0 (45,352) 0 (45,352) 
Economic development 128,527 3,000 0 0 (125,527) 0 (125,527) 
Emergency services 364,377 224-,118 0 0 (140,259) 0 (140,259) 
Gott Course 250,209 165,169 0 0 (85,040) 0 (85,040) 
Solid Waste fllnd 429,066 425,749 0 0 (3,319) 0 (3 ,319) 
Druilfllnd 12,095 15,605 0 0 3,510 0 3,510 
Highway and strnets 6S230 0 135.586 0 70356 0 70356 

Total GovemmenlAI Adlv)Oes £J97,S.O 1;053,679 338,672 0 _(218071189) 0 !2,807,189) 

Business . iype Ac11\/lties; 
Water and Sewer Fund 3,171.874 2,997,364 0 0 0 (174,510) (174,510) 
Natural 11as fund 1 899.SOO 2 042192 0 0 0 142 692 142 692 

Total Business Twe Acfivilles 51071,374 5,039.f,SG 0 0 0 (31618) (31 1818) 

Total 9,2.68,914 6.093.235 336.672 0 (2,807,189) (31 ,818) (2 ,639,007) 

General Revenues: 
Property taxes 710,163 0 710,183 
Publlc umity taxes 138,193 0 138,193 
Seles lexes 2,024,550 0 2 ,024,550 
Beer and liquor taxes 345,340 0 345,340 
Franchise taxes 45,528 0 45.526 
Buslness ta)(es 143,519 0 143,519 
S(ate income and exeise taxes 36,353 0 36,353 
Sele of assets 119,236 5,299 124,S37 
Interest lncorne 4,070 6 4,076 
Other 57 566 0 57266 

Total general revenues '3.6241540 5!305 3,629,845 

Changes In Net Position 817.351 (26,5t3) 790.838 

Net Position - beginning of year 7.926,023 16,766.473 24,692,496 

Net position. ending of year ei7<31374 16,739,960 25,483.~ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2022 

General State Street Drug Solid Waste 
Fund Aid Fund Fund Fund Total 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $3,650,469 s110.ssa 29,541 88,565 $3,879.433 

Accounts receivable: 
Property taxes receivable 804,333 0 0 0 804,333 
Customers 1,286 0 0 62,201 63,487 
Other governments 261.215 22,225 0 0 283,440 

1,066,834 22,225 0 62 ,201 1,151,260 

Prepaid assets 32,142 0 0 2,916 35,058 

Total Assets S4i?49,445 $133,083 $29,541 $153,682 $5,065,751 

Liablli\l!i!S, Q~f!ilrred Inflow of Resources 211d Fund Balance 

LiabiU!ies: 
Accounts payable $1 7,512 5.142 0 4,800 27,454 
Accrued expenses 31,916 0 0 3.716 35,632 

Total Liabilities 49,428 5,142 0 8,516 6-3.086 

Deferred Inflow of Resources: 
Deferred - unspent grant funds 565,684 0 0 0 565,684 
Deferred current property taxes 750,333 0 0 0 750,333 
Deferred deliquent property taxes 54,000 0 0 0 54,000 

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 1,370,017 0 0 0 1,370,017 

Fund Balance: 
Assigned - DARE program 30,235 0 0 0 30,235 
Non-spendable 32,142 0 0 0 32,142 
Unassigned 3,267,623 0 0 0 3,267,623 
Restricted 0 127,941 29,541 145,166 302,648 

Total Fund Balance 3,330,000 127,941 29,541 145,166 3,632,648 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balance 4,749.445 $133.083 $29,541 $153,682 $5,065,751 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financia l statements, 

14 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Reconcillation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
of Governmental Activities 

June 30, 2022 

Amounts reported for fund balance - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position are different because: 

Cepllal assets used in governmental actlvllies are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported In the governmental funds 

Other long term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures 
and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds 

Pension related accounts - governmental funds lo not record these post-benefit 
obligations 
Net pension asset 
Deferred outflow - pension 
Deferred Inflow - pension 

OPEB related accounts - governmental funds to not record these post-benefit 
obligations 
Total OPEB liability 
Deferred outflow - OPES 
Deferred Inflow - OPEB 

Long-term liabili ties, Including bonds payable are not due and payable in the 
curre!ll period and therefore are not recorded In the funds 
Accrued vacation expense 
Post closure care costs 
Bonds payable 

Net Position of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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3.632.648 

5,501,797 

54 .000 

805.011 
525.164 

(817.688) 

(222,559) 
63.702 

(179,568) 

(114,653) 
(446,880) 

{57,600) 

8,743,374 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balanee 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Total 
General State Street Drug Solid Waste Governmental 

Fund Aid Fund Fund Fund f.\!!!Q! 

Revenues: 
Taxes 2,944,566 0 0 0 2,944,566 
Intergovernmental 679,945 128,801 0 0 808,746 
Fines and fees 446,986 0 15,605 425,749 888,340 
Miscellaneous 377,588 0 0 0 377,588 

Total revenues S4 ,449,085 5128,801 $15,605 S425,749 $5,019,240 

Expenditures: 
General government 752,800 0 0 0 752,800 
Police departmeril 1,357,747 0 0 0 1,357,747 
Fire department 266,017 0 0 0 266,017 
Animal control 6,532 0 0 0 6,532 
Public works 363,924 0 0 0 363,924 
Cemetery 13,827 0 0 0 13,827 
Golf Course 237,871 0 0 0 237,871 
Parks 45,000 0 0 0 45,000 
Economic development 128,527 0 0 0 128,527 
Emergency services 364,377 0 0 0 364,377 
Drug fund expenses 0 0 12,095 0 12,095 
Solid Waste fund 0 0 0 413,037 413,037 
Highway and slreels 0 65,230 0 () 65,230 
Capital outlay 
General government 136,815 0 0 0 138,815 
Police department 26,127 0 0 0 26,127 
Public works 100,958 0 0 0 100,958 
Golf Course 14,000 0 0 0 14,000 
Debt service 
Principal 0 0 0 18,200 18,200 
Interest a 0 0 1,794 1,794 

Total expenditures $3,8 6.522 $65,230 $12,095 $433,031 $4,326,878 

El<cess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures saa,seJ 63,571 3.510 (7,282) 692,362. 

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,697,437 64,370 26,031 152,448 2,9-40,286 

Fund balance, end of year S3,330,000 $127,941 S291541 $145,166 $3,632,648 

See accompanying notes to financial statements, 

16 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes ln Fund Balance 
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Net change In fund balances • total governmental funds: 

Amounts reported for governmental activltles in the statement of net 
position are different because: 

Governmef'llal funds repor1 capital outlays as expenditures. HQwever, in the statem~nt 
of activities the cost or those assets fs allocated over their esuma1ed useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. 

Acquisition of capital assets 
Depreciation expense 
Loss on sale of assets 

Liabilities not reported in the governmental fund - change in accrued vacation liability 

Llabllities not reported In the governmental fund •· change in penslon plan accrual 

Llabilltles not reported in the governmental fund •· change In post retirement benefits liability 

Revenues In the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in lhe funds. 

Expenses reported in the statement of acUvities that do not requ re the use or current 
financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds 

Debt principal payments 

Change ln Net Position of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 692,362 

285,650 
(326,037) 
fl0,133) 

{9,213) 

231,699 

(828) 

(4 ,J49) 

18.200 

817.351 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 

June 30, 2022 

Water and Natural Gas 
Sewer Fund Fund 

Assets and Deferred Outflows 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $422,981 $2,290,834 
Customer accounts receivable, net of allowance 467,558 128,912 
Prepaid assets 20,949 4,860 
Inventory 89,349 215.210 

Total Current Assets 1,000,837 2,639,816 

Capital Assets: 
Capital assets in service 32,630,668 3,060,852 
Less accumulated depreciation (12,300,666) {1,867,700) 
Total Capital Assets, Net 20,330,002 1,193,152 

Net Pension Asset 260,081 173.387 

Total Assets $21.590.920 $4,006.355 

Deferred outflows: 
Deferred ou10ows ofresources • OPEB 20,581 13,720 
Deferred outflows of resources. pension 169,668 I 13,1 13 

Total Deferred Outflows $ 190,249 $126,833 

Uabl!ltles 
Accounts payable 52,085 92,857 
Accrued expenses 54,715 31 ,682 
Net OPES liability 71,904 47,936 
Premium on Long-term debt 162,684 0 
long-term debt due within one year 733,865 31 ,500 
long-term debt due in more than one year 6,889.185 469,000 

Total liabilities 7 ,964,438 672,975 

Deferred Inflows 
Deferred inflow of resources - OPE.B 58,0 14 38,676 
DeferTed inflow of resources• pension 264.176 176,J 18 

Total Deferred Inflows 322,190 214.794 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 12,706,952 692,652 
Restricted - Debt service 400,000 46,312 
Unrestricted 387.589 2,506,455 

Total Net Position 13.494.541 3,245,419 

The notes accompanying the financial slaternents are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

2 ,713,815 
596,470 
25,809 

304,559 
3,640,653 

35,691,520 
(14.168,366) 
21.523,154 

433.468 

$25,597,275 

34,301 
282.781 

$317,082 

144,942 
86,397 

119,840 
162,684 
765,365 

7,358,185 
8,637,413 

96,690 
440,294 
536.984 

13,399,604 
446,312 

2.894,044 

16,739,960 



Operating Revenves: 
Service fees 
Tap and connection fees 
Other income 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries 
Payroll truces 
Employee benefits 
Training and travel 
Fees and memberships 
Utilit.ies 
Professional services 
Natural gas purchased 
Insurance 
Repair and maintenance 
Supplies 
Office expense 
Vehicle expense 
Mlscellaneous 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest income 
Gain/(loss) on sale of assets 
Interest expense 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position 

Enterprise Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

$2,887,980 
73,848 
35,536 

2,997,364 

674,998 
46,021 

114,699 
9,768 

18,662 
323,811 
66,420 

0 
73,1 54 

261 ,227 
456,782 

2,345 
50,420 
2,939 

826,400 
2,927,646 

69,718 

6 
(42,986) 

(244.22Bl 

Natural Gas 
Fund 

$1,964,151 
60,285 
17,756 

2,042,192 

391,414 
27,358 

105,997 
1,966 
3,027 

33,707 
33,056 

906,205 
15,698 
48,442 

169,431 
1,663 

13,982 
1,126 

129?40 
1,882,812 

159,380 

0 
48,285 

{16,688! 
Total Nonoperating Revenue:;; {Expenses) {287,208) 31 ,597 

Ne1 change in position 

Net Position, July 1, 2021 

Net Position, June 30, 2022 

(217,490) 

3,712,031 

$13,494,541 

190,977 

3,054,442 

$3,245,41 9 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

$4,852,131 
134,133 

53,292 
5,039,556 

1,066,412 
73,379 

220,696 
11,734 
21 ,689 

357,518 
99,476 

906,205 
88,852 

309,669 
626,213 

4,008 
64,402 

4,065 
956,140 

4 810,458 

229,098 

6 
5,299 

(2601916} 
!255,611) 

(26,513) 

16,766,473 

16,739,960 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund Types 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employees 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquis ition of capital assets 
Gain/loss on sale of assets 
Loan proceeds 
Interest paid 
Repayment of debt 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest received 

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Net Change in Cash 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2021 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2022 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Operating Income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided (used} by operating activlties: 
Depreciation 
Change in assets (Increase) decrease: 

Receivables 
Inventory 
Prepaid assets 
Deferred outflows 
Net pension, asset 

Change in liabilities increase (decrease): 
Total OPEB liability 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expe11ses 
Deferred inflows 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Water and Natural 
Sewer Fund Gas Fund 

2,989,129 2,018,171 
(1,277.801) (1 ,210,713) 

(835,718! (524i169) 
875,610 282,689 

(1,058,893) (126,808) 
(42,986) 48,285 

1,950,480 0 
(244,228) (16,688) 

(11810,455} (29,750! 
(1 ,206,082) (124,961) 

6 0 
6 0 

(330,466) 157,728 

753,447 2,133,106 

422,981 22901834 

69,718 159,380 

826,400 129,740 

(8,235) (24,021) 
(10,136} (106,600) 

(2,304) (497) 
(125,113) (25,821) 
(220,538) (145,880) 

(40,975) (30,588) 
338 42,249 

(1 3,1 93) 5,154 
399.648 279,573 
875.610 2821689 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Total 

5,007,300 
(2,480,514) 
(1 ,3601487) 
1,158,299 

(1,185,701) 
5,299 

1,960,480 
(260,916) 

{1 ,840,205! 
(1 ,331 ,043) 

6 
6 

(172,738) 

2,886,553 

2,713,815 

229,098 

956,140 

(32,256) 
(116,736) 

(2,80,1) 
(150,934) 
(366,418) 

(71 ,563) 
42,587 
(8,039) 

679,221 
1,158,299 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positrve 
Budget Budget Actual (Negatlvel 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes $745,000 $745,000 $714,532 (30,468) 
Public utility taxes 84,312 84,000 -99,856 15,856 
Local sales tax 1,150,000 1.430,000 1,597,824 167,824 
Local beer and liquor tax 225,500 237,500 333,796 96,296 
Mixed drink tax 5,000 5,000 9,511 4,511 
Franchise taxes 49,000 49,000 45,528 (3,472) 
Business taxes 66,000 65, 000 143,519 78,519 

Total Taxes 2.323,812 2,615,500 2,944,566 329.066 

Intergovernmental: 
TVA in lieu 44,000 44,000 38,337 (6,663) 
State sales ·tax 300,000 360,000 426,726 66,726 
State beer tax 0 0 2,033 2,033 
State income tax 35,000 35,000 970 (34,030) 
State special petroleum tax 7,500 7,000 6.785 (215) 
Grants 1,500 1,500 156,111 154,611 
State supplement 9,200 1 't,200 13,600 2,400 
Corporate excise tax 17,000 20000 35,383 15,383 

Total Intergovernmental Revenue 414,200 478,700 679,945 201 ,245 

Fines and fees; 
Building permits 5,000 10,000 10,703 703 
Police fines 15,200 12,200 20,063 7,863 
Golf course revenues 138,500 146,600 165,169 18,569 
Dispatcher reimbursement 221 ,000 233,000 224,1 18 (8,882) 
Cemetery 800 2,800 5,200 2,400 
Other fines and fees 1,100 131000 21,733 8,733 

Total Fines and Fees 3B'l ,600 417,600 446,986 29.386 

Miscellaneous: 
Miscellaneous 24,900 12,462 2,804 (9,658) 
Economic development 3,000 3,000 3,000 0 
Insurance recoveries 3,000 3,000 54,762 51 ,762 
Charges for services 178,000 170,000 162,339 (7,661) 
Donations 0 1,600 31,375 29,775 
Sale of assets 0 100,000 119,238 19,238 
Interest income 25,000 25,000 41070 (2019301 

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 233,900 3151062 3771588 621526 

Total Revenues 3,353J>12 3,826,862 4,449,085 622,223 

The notes accompanying me financial statements are an Tntegral part of these financfal statements. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes 1n Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actuc1I, Continued 

General Fund 

For the Y.ear Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Orfgfnal Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual jt,legauvei 

E)cpendi!ures: 
General Government: 
Current: 

Salaries 151 ,000 240,000 255,157 (15,157) 
.Payroll taices 11,552 16,360 16,760 1,600 
Employee benefits 70,200 86,200 89,551 (3,351} 
Utilities 38,000 36,000 38,472 (472) 
Professional services 58,500 61,500 69.452 (7,952) 
Office supplies 22,300 29,300 35,069 (5,769) 
supplles 16,700 15,700 69,550 (53,850) 
Donations 12,000 12,000 37,285 (25,285) 
Travel and training 7,000 7,000 9,282 (2,282) 
Insurance 16,000 19,000 21,522 (2,522} 
Dues and subscripUons 7,400 7.400 2,635 4,765 
Vehicle expenses 10,000 10-,000 10,876 (876) 
Repair and maintenance 17,250 17,250 22,449 (5,199) 
Grant expenses 0 0 62,902 (62,902) 
Miscellaneous 10,250 10,250 11,838 (1,588) 

448,152 571 ,960 752,800 (180,840) 
Debt service 179,653 0 0 0 
Caprtaloutlay 60,000 792,738 138,615 653,923 

Total General Government 687.805 1.364.698 891 ,615 473,083 

Public Safety: 
Pollce Department: 

Current: 
Salarles 806,000 806,000 826,093 (20,093) 
Payroll taxes 60,000 55,000 56,801 (1,801) 
Employee benefits 264,000 264,000 306,045 (42,045) 
Training 8,000 8,000 6,033 1,967 
Dues and subscriptions 1,900 1,900 10,792 (8,892) 
iUtl!IUes 8,500 8,500 14,301 (5,801) 
Insurance 41 ,000 41,000 39,986 1,014 
Vehlcle expense 29,000 29,000 46,498 (17,498) 
Repair & maintenance, 4,200 3,000 10,260 (7,260) 
Supplies 26,850 30,550 36,336 (5,786) 
Proresslonal services 11,200 11,200 891 10;309 
Miscellaneous 8,250 21,250 3,711 17,539 

1,268,900 1.279,400 1,357,747 (78,347) 
Capital outlay 15,500 85,000 26,127 5M73 

Total Police Departmenf 1,284,400 1,364,400 1,383.874 (19,474) 

Fire Department: 
Current: 

Salaries and volunteer firemen 130,000 136,000 143,865 (7,865) 
Payroll taxes 17,1 00 8,500 10,367 (1 ,867) 
Employee benefits 35,200 42,300 34,910 7,390 
Tralnlng and travel 2,250 2,000 720 1,280 
Repair and maintenance 2,750 10,000 11,706 (1,706) 
Supplfes 17,750 18,000 2,071 15,929 
Uniforms 15,000 15,000 21,593 (6,593) 
Ulillties 12,311 12,311 13,991 (1,660) 
Insurance 12,000 12,000 13,329 (1 ,329) 
Vehicle expenses 6,500 6,500 13,380 (6,880) 
Miscellaneous 2 000 2,000 65 1,935 

252.861 264,611 266,017 (1,406) 
Capital outlay 2,500 2,500 0 2,500 

Total Fire Department 255,361 26711 1 265,017 1,094 

Total Public Safety 1.539,761 1,631.511 1,649,691 (18,3801 

Continued on next page 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an lntegra·t part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual, Continued 

General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Animal Control 
Salary and benefits 11 ,566 14,742 360 14,382 
Maintenance and supplies 4,100 4.100 6 11 72 ,2.072) 

15,666 18.842 6,532 12,310 
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0 

Total Animal Control 15,666 181842 6,532 12,310 

Public Works: 
Salaries 62,000 163,000 149,345 13,655 
Payroll taxes 11,953 12,470 10,122 2,348 
Employee benefits 32,675 56,855 57,457 (602) 
Repair and maintenance 38,000 36,500 65,145 (28,645) 
Vehicle expense 17,500 17,000 32,1 85 (15,185} 
Materials and supplies 39,000 25,500 40,595 (15,095} 
Utilities 10,000 10,000 7,019 2,981 
Miscellaneous 5,050 550 2,056 { 1,506) 

216,178 321,875 363,924 (42,049) 
Capital outlay 148,400 240,_000 100,958 139,042 

Total Public Works 364,578 56f,875 464.882 96,993 

Cemetery 
Repair and maintenance 17.100 17.100 13 827 3 273 

17,1 00 11,rno 13,827 3,273 
Capital outlay 0 a 0 a 

Total Cemetery 17,100 17,100 13,827 3,273 

Golf Course: 
Salaries 90,000 125,000 104,625 20,375 
Payroll taxes 9,735 9,562 7,592 1,970 
Employee benefits 6,000 10,850 16,474 (5,624) 
Utilities 15,600 15,600 18,496 (2,896) 
Repair and maintenance 23,000 24,000 30,567 (6,567) 
Tournament Prizes 9,000 9,000 7,322 1,678 
Vehicle expense 8,300 8,300 8,413 (113) 
Insurance 1,200 1,200 1,666 (466) 
Materials and suppOes 33,000 32,000 41 ,781 (9,781) 
Miscellaneous 3,300 31300 935 2,365 

199,135 238,812 237,871 941 
Capital outlay 0 25,000 14,000 11 1000 

Total Golf Course 199,135 263,812 251 ,871 11 ,941 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an i ntegral part of fhese financ,ar statements. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance • Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual, Continued 

Parks and Recreation: 
Donation 

Capital outlay 
Totat Parks and Recreation 

Economic development: 
Salaries 
Payroll ·taxes 
Employee benefits 
Site development 
Training and travel 
Materials and supplies 
Utilities 
Miscellaneous 

Debi service 
Total Economic development 

Emergency Services: 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Memberships 
Supplies 

Capital outlay 
Total Emergency Services 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures 

Fund Balance, July 1, 2021 

Fond Balance, June 30, 2022 

General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Original Final 
Budget Budget Actual 

45,000 45000 45 000 
45,000 45,000 45,000 

0 0 0 
45.000 45,000 45,000· 

38,000 39,000 44,970 
2,907 2,984 2,569 

11 ,380 11,380 18,082 
15,000 18,000 11,064 
4,300 3,500 714 

500 1,300 47,255 
480 480 1,095 

20,000 20,000 2 778 
92,567 96,644 128,527 

0 0 0 
92 567 96.644 128,527 

265,000 245,000 256,210 
17,500 16,000 17,273 
99,150 115,650 87,768 
7,200 7,200 561 
3,050 31530 2,565 

391 ,900 387,380 364,377 
0 0 0 

391 ,900 387,380 364,377 

3,353,512 4,386,882 3,816,522 

0 (560,000) 632,563 

2,697,437 2,697,437 2,697.437 

2,697,437 2,137,437 3,330,000 

Varfance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
{NegativeJ 

0 
0 
0 
0 

(5,970) 
415 

(6,702) 
6,936 
2,786 

(45,955) 
(615) 

17,222 
(31,883) 

0 
131 ,883) 

(11,210) 
(1,273) 

27,882 
6,639 

965 
23,003 

0 
23,003 

570,340 

1,192,563 

0 

1,192,563 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financfal statements. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

State Street Aid Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual ~Negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental: 
Gasoline ,03 tax 19,000 21,000 19,505 (1 ,495) 
Gasoline 1989 tax 2,000 12,000 10,526 (1 ,474) 
Gasoline 2017 tax 35,000 37,000 33,996 (3,004) 
Gasoline and motor fuel 721000 68,000 64,774 (3,226) 

Total Revenues 138,000 138,000 128,801 {9,199) 

Expenditures: 
Streets: 
Street lights 86,000 86,000 65,230 20,770 
Maintenance and repair 130,000 52,000 0 52,000 
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditures 216,000 1381000 651230 72,770 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (78,000) 0 63,571 63,571 

Fund Balance, July 1, 2021 64,370 641370 64,370 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2022 {$13,630) $64,370 127.941 63,571 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Revenues: 
Fines and Fees: 

Drug related 

Miscellaneous: 
Sale of equipment 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Supplies 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Drug Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Original Final 
Budget Budget 

20,000 20,000 

0 0 

20,000 20,000 

20,000 20,000 
0 0 

20,000 20,000 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 0 0 

Fund Balance, July 1, 2021 26,031 26,031 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2022 $26,031 $26,031 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Actual (Negative} 

15,605 (4,395) 

0 0 

15,605 (4,395) 

12,095 7,905 
0 0 

12,095 7,905 

3,510 3,510 

26,031 0 

29,541 3,510 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Revenues: 
Service fees 

Total Revenues 

Expenses: 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Fees 
Utilities 
Professional services 
Insurance 
Repair and maintenance 
Supplies 
Garbage cans 
Vehicle expense 
Miscellaneous 

Debt service 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expend itures 

Fund Balance, July 1, 2021 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2022 

Solid Waste Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Original 
Budget 

377,000 

377,000 

160,000 
23,290 
961000 
3,100 
6,500 

10,500 
4,900 
4,631 
9,400 

16,000 
22,500 

100 
356,921 
20,079 

377!000 

0 

152,448 

$152,448 

Final 
Budget 

435,000 

435,000 

190,000 
14,535 

106,550 
1,000 
6,500 

0 
4,900 
4,631 
5,400 

14,389 
64,500 

2,600 
415,005 

19,995 
435,000 

0 

152.448 

$1 52,448 

Actual 

425,749 

425.749 

195,588 
13,1 17 
83,558 

237 
6,016 
6,827 
3,782 
3,728 

18,689 
16,725 
46,035 
16,735 

413,037 
19,994 

433,031 

(7 ,282) 

152,448 

$145,166 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

(9,251) 

{9,251} 

(5,588) 
1,418 

22,992 
763 
484 

(6,827) 
1,118 

903 
(13,289) 

(2 ,336) 
18,465 

(1 6,135) 
1.968 

1 
1,969 

{7,282) 

0 

($7,282) 

The notes accompanying the financia'I statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENTS 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Hohenwald, Tennessee, was incorporated by the Private Act of the Tennessee General 
Asseo1bly. The City provides the following services, as authorized by its charter and duly passed 
ordinances: public safety (Police and Fire), water and sewerage, natural gas, streets, sanitation, recreations, 
public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. The accounting policies of 
the City of Hohenwald, Tennessee conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to 
governments. The fo llowing is a summary of the more significant policies. 

Reporting Entity: 

1n evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management follows all applicable GASS statements and has 
addressed all potential component units (tradjtionally separate reporting entities) for which the City may be 
fmanciaJly accountable and, as such, should be included within the City's financial statemems. The City 
(the primary government) is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's 
governing board and (1) it is able to impose its will on the organization or (2) there is a potential for tl1e 
organization to provide specific financial benefit or to impose specific financial burden on the City . 
Additionally, the primary government is required to consider other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the 
reporting entity's financiaJ statements to be misleading or incomplete. The City has no component w1its at 
yearend. 

The financial statements now include government-wide financial statements prepared on the accrual basis 
of accounting and the economic measurement focus for all funds. The fund financial statements present 
information for indjvjdual major funds rather than by fund type. Nonmajor funds are presented in one 
column. The reporting includes the reporting of capital assets, infrastructure and depreciation. the 
elimination of accoW1t groups, and the inclusion of management's discussion and analysis. 

The government-wide financial statements present the City's programs between business-type and 
governmental activities. 

Government -Wide and Fund Financial Staternents 
The Government-wide financial statements. the statement of Net Position and the statement of changes in 
Net Position, report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the 
most part, the effect of the interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Government 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reporLed separately 
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include (i) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use or dfrectly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment 
and (ii) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting tl1e operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

Measurement focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of acco@ting, as are the proprietary fund :financial statements. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund revenues are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they become both meaStlt'able 
and collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current 
period. The government considers property taxes and most governmental revenues as available if received 
within 4S days ofyearend. Expenditures are recorded generally when a liability is incun-ed, as under accrnal 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences 
and claims and judgments are recorded onJy when payment is due. 

Property taxes, state shared revenues, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period using the 
criteria specified in the paragraph above. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 

The government reports the following major funds: 

GeneraJ Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial resources of the general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

State Street Aid Fund - The State Street Aid Fund is used to account for the operations of the state shared 
gasoline revenues. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Drug Fund - The Drug Fund accounts for the revenues derived from drug-related fines and the City's 
investigative and educational programs. 

Solid Waste Fund - To account for the operations of the Sanitation operations. During the year, the Town 
moved the Solid Waste Fund to a governmental fund to better reflect its operations. 

The government reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Water and Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of the Water and Sewer Fund. 

Natural Gas Fund-This fund is used to account for the operations of the Natural Gas Fund. 

The Proprielary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
Lo private business enterprises - where the intent of the goveming body is that the costs (including 
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges. 

As a general rule the effect of inter.fund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments- in-lieu taxes and other charges between the 
government's utilities and various other functions of the govemment. Elimination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and progran1 revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include (i) charges to customers or applicants for goods. services, 
or privileges provided, (ii) operating grants and contributions, and (iii) capital grants and contributions. 
General revenues include all taxes and internally dedicated resources. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses genera.Uy result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund•s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
various utility funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Utility Fund also recognize as 
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the 
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. Ali revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. When unrestricted funds are used, the City 
uses committed, assigned then unassigned funds. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued 

Recejvables and Payables 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/ borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as either due from/ due to other funds (i.e. the current portion of interfund 
loans). Any residuaJ balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities 
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal balances. 

Advances between fundsJ as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that lhey are not available for appropriation and are 
not expendable available resources. All trade receivables arc shown net of an allowance for uncollectibJe, 
if applicable. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
ln addition to assetsJ the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expe11se/expendittll'e) until then. The government has two items (pension and OPBB) that 
qualifies for reporting in this category. 

fa addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resourcesJ represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. The government has items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
Accordingly, the items are reported in the government-wide Statement ofNet Position and the governmental 
funds balance sheet. These revenues are from the following sources: current and delinquent property taxes 
and various receivables for intergovernmental shared revenues, which do not meet the availability criteria 
in governmental funds. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period 
that the amoW1ts become available. Additionally, the government bas tlu·ee items (pension. OPEB and 
unspent grant funds) that qualifies for reporting in this category. 

Net Position Flow Assumption 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted 
resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net 
position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made 
about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to consider 
restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policie , Continued 

Property Tax 
The City's property tax is le ied each July 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all 
real and personal property located in the City's Jegal boundaries. All City taxes on real estate are declared 
to be a lien on such realty from January I oftbe year assessments are made. 

Assessed values are established by the State of Tennessee at the following rates of appraised market 
value: 

Public Utility Property 55% 
Industrial and Commercial Property 
-Real 40% 
- Personal 30% 
Farm and Residential Property 25% 

Taxes were levied at a rate of $1.1253 per $100 of assessed valuation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2022. Payments may be made dw-in,g the period from July 1 through ovember 1. un-enl tax olJ ctions 
of $687,847 for the fiscal year ended June 30. 2022 wel'e approximately 95 percent of th ta le 
Delinquent taxes are turned over to the County for collection as required by the City s Murucipal ode. 

Capital Assets 
apitaJ assets which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets consisting of ·ertaio 

improvements other than buildings, including roads bridges, streets and sidewalks, and drainag ystems 
are reported in the applicable go emmental or business-type activities coltunns in the government- idc 
financial statements. Capital a sets are defined by th goverm11ent as assets with an individl.la] cost o • 
$2,500 and an estimated useful life in e.xcess of three years. AU capital assets are valued at historical t 
or estimated useful life in excess of thr e years. AJI capital asset are valued at historical cost or estimat d 
historical cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued t U1eir stimat d 
fair value on the date donated. The costs of normal mai nt oance and repairs that do oot add lo the alu o 
the asset or materia11y extend asset lives are not capitalized. Interest incurred dt1ring the constructi I1 
phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized valu of the a et 
constructed. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight~line method. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Utility Plant in Service 
Furniture and Equipment 

32 

40-50 years 
10-50 years 
10-50 years 

5-10 years 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(1) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Inventory 
Inventory of the Utility Fund is valued at cost, using the first in first out method. Inventory of all the 
governmental funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption and are recorded at cost under 
the consumption method. 

Compensated Absences 
The City has accrued a liability for unused sick and vacation pay which is earned, but not taken by City 
employees. 

Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Restricted Assets 

Balance 
July 1, 
2021 

105,440 
67,323 

Addi­
tions 
9,213 

Retire­
ments 

10,742 

Balance 
June 30, 

2022 
114,653 

56,581 

Certain proceeds of the Enterprise Fund bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, 
are classified as restricted assets on their respective balance sheets because they are maintained in separate 
bank accounts and their use is either limited by applicable bond covenants or represent proceeds from bond 
issues that are restricted for use in construction. 

Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Pension 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resow-ces related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
Hohenwald's participation in the Public Employee Retirement Plan of the Tennessee Consolidated 
Retirement System (TCRS), and additions to/deductions from HohenwaJd' s fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TCRS for the Public Employee Retirement 
Plan. For this purpose, benefits (includi11g refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms of the Public Employee Retirement Plan ofTCRS. Investmellts 
are reported at fair value. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of savings accounts, certificates of deposit with original 
maturities three months or less and amounts held by the State Local Government Investment Pool. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Long-term Obligations 
1n the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financiaJ statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund lype statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds and are presented 
in the accompanying financial statements as other assets. 

In the fund, financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as otber financing uses. Issuance costs, 
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
The City follows these procedw·es in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

a. Formal budgets are adopted and approved by Council vote on an annual basis for the General and 
Special Revenue Funds. These budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accow1ting 
principles (GAAP). 

b. The City Council approves, by ordinance, total budget appropriations by department only. The 
Mayor is authorized to transfer budget amounts between line items within each department; however, any 
revisions that alter the total appropriations of any fund must be approved by the City Council. 

c. The budget amounts shown in the :financial statements are the final authorized amounts as amended 
during the year. 

Government Wide- Net Position 
Net position is a component of equity and is displayed in the following three components: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets, .net of accumulated depreciation and reduced 
by the outstanding balances of any bonds that are attributable to the acquisition, construction. or 
improvement of those assets; debt related to unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and investments is 
excluded from the determination. 

Restricted - Consists of net position for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as 
lenders, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, and enabling legjslatio11; including self-imposed legal 
mandates, less any related liabilities. The restrictions are evident from the classification titles. 

Unrestricted-All other net position that does not meet the description of the above categories. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Fund Balance 
The Town implemented GASB 54 which addresses issues related to how fund balances are reported. Fund 
balances are now reported in the following manner: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are (a) not in spendable fom1, or 
{b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in spendable form" criterion includes 
terms that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example: inventories, prepaid amounts, and long­
term notes receivable. 

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted for specific purposes 
stipulated by external resource providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may 
effectively be changed or lifted with the consent of resource providers. 

Committed Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that can only be used for the specific 
purposes determined by a formal action of the City•s highest level of decision-making authority, the City 
Council of the City of Hohenwald, Tennessee. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the City 
taking the same form.al action that imposed the constraint originally (for example: ordinance). 

Assigned Fund Balance - This classification included amounts intended to be used by the Town for specific 
purposes that ate neither restricted nor committed. The City Council and its designee, the Recorder, have, 
the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned an1ounts also include all residual 
amounts in governmental funds (except negative amounts) that are not classified as nonspendable. 
restricted, or committed. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. It is also 
used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple 
fund balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned, and 
unassigned. 

Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan- (OPEB) 
For the purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to other postemployrnent benefits, and OPEB expense> information about the fiduciary 
net position of the City of Hoheowald's participation in the Local Government OPEB P lan (LGOP), and 
additions to/deductions from the City of Hohenwald fiduciary net position l1ave. been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by the LGOP. For this purpose, benefits are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with benefit terms of the LOOP. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(2) Cash and Ca h Egui alents-

The City is authorized to invest funds in Federal treasury bills a11d notes, tate of Tennessee Local 
Government Investment Pool and financial institution demand d posit accounts and certificates of d po it. 
During the year the City invested funds that wer not immediately needed in certificates of deposits, sa ings 
accounts and investments in the State of Tennessee Lo al Govemm nt Investment P ol. he City has 
deposit policies to minimize custodial credit risks. All deposits with financial in titutions must be cured 
by one of two methods. One method in olves financial institutions that participate in the bank collateral 
pool administered by the s1ate treasur r. Parti ipating banks determfoe the aggregate balance of their public 
fund accounts for tbe Stat of Tennessee and its political subcli isions. The amount of collateral reqt1ired to 
secure these public deposits must equal at least l 05 percent of the average daily balance of public depo it 
held. Collateral secw-ities required to be pledged by the participating banks to protect their publi fund 
accounts are pledged to the state treasurer on behalf of the bank collateral pool. The securities pledged t 
protect these accounts are pledged in the aggregate rather than against each account. The members of the 
pool may be required by agreement to pay an as essment to cover any deficiency . Under this additional 
assessment agreement, public fund accounts covered by the pool are considered to be insured for purposes 
of credit risk disclosure. 

For d posits with financial institutions Urnt d not participate in the bank collateral pool, state statutes 
require that alJ deposits be colJateralized with collat ral whose market value is equal to 105 percent of the 
uninsured amount of the deposits. Th collateral must b placed y the depository bank in an escrov a aunt 
i11 a second bank for the benefit of the city. The ity' s deposits with financial institutions are fuU insured 
or collateralized b securities held b t:he d pository bank in the government s name. Additionall , th 
dep sit accounts are covered by the Federal D pository Insurance Coverage. 

(3) Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2022, consist of the following: 

Other Property Customer 
Fund Government axes Accounts Total 

General Fund $261,215 804,333 1,286 1,066,834 
Special Revenue Funds 22,225 62,201 84,426 
Enterprise Funds 1,784,873 1,784,873 
Less allowance for 
doubtful accounts (1, 188,403) 

Total $283,440 8Q4.333 6:52125:Z 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(4) Capital Assets 

A swnmary of hange ln general capital assets as presented in the governmental activities column of the 
government- wide financial statements is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
July I , 2021 Additions Disposals June 30, 2022 

Land $821 ,582 35,000 0 856,582 
Buildings 3,634,115 0 45,000 3,589,115 
Improvements 2,402,881 39,239 0 2,442,120 
Vehicles 1,453,928 47,391 14,990 1,486;329 
Equipment 1,475,553 164!020 692500 1,570,073 

Total 9,788,059 285,650 129 490 9,944,219 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 4,175,742 4.44-,422 

Net capital assets in service $5,612,317 $5,501,797 

All assets, except land of $856,582, are being depreciated. 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

General Fund: 
General government administration 
Police department 
Fire department 
Public Works 
Animal shelter 
Park 
Golf 
Solid waste 

Total 

37 

$ 65 304 
73,216 
62,663 
97,507 

420 
352 

12,338 
14.237 

326.037 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statetnents 

June 30, 2022 

(4) Capital set , Continued 

A summary of changes in Enterprise (Water and Sewer) Fund capital assets and related accumulated 
depreciation follows: 

Balance Balance 
July 1, 2021 Additions Disposals June 30 2022 

Land and easement $119,796 0 0 119,796 
Buildings 85,014 0 0 85,014 
Utility plant 30,013,138 73 ,479 0 30,086,617 
Equipment 12467,151 985,414 113,324 2,339,241 

Total 31,685,099 1,058,893 113,324 32,630,668 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 11,520,387 12,300,666 

Net capital assets in service $20, 164,712 $20,330,002 

All assets, except land and easements of $119,796 are being depreciated. Depreciation expense was 
$826,400 in 2022. 

A summary of changes in Enterprise (Gas) Fund capital assets and related accwnulated depreciation 
follows: 

Balance Balance 
July 1, 2021 Additions Disposals June 30, 2022 

Land and easement $79,388 0 0 79,388 
Utility plant 2,142,733 0 0 2,142,733 
Equipment 878,028 126,808 166.105 838,731 

Total 3,100,149 126,1W8 166,105 3,060,852 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 1,807,239 1,867,700 

Net capital assets in service $1,292,910 $1 1 3 152 

All assets, except land of $79,388, are being depreciated. Depreciation expense was $129,740 in 2022. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

Long-Term Debt Payab]e and Other Obligation Payable 

Direct Borrowings 

The following schedule reflects the changes in long-term debt, as shown for governmental activities during 
the fiscal year 2022. 

Bonds payable 

Capital Outlay - First TN 2016 
Total 

Balance 
July 1 2021 

75,800 
75,800 

Additions 

0 

0 

Principal of $18,700 and interest of $1,549 is due in the next fiscal year. 

Retirements 

18_,200 
18 200 

Balance 
June 30. 2022 

57,600 
57,600 

The following schedule reflects the changes in long-term debt, as shown in the Enterprise (Water and Sewer) 
Fund during the fiscal year 2022. 

Balance 

July 1, 2021 

Series 2022 
State revolving loan 2,820,637 
Series 2011 1,230,000 
Series 2019 2,295,000 
Series 2020 984,750 
DW-2016-167 152,638 
Series 2021 0 

Total 7,483,025 

Additions 

780,480 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1,170,000 

1,950,480 

Retirements 

250,761 
1,230,000 

265,000 
55,250 
9,444 

1,810,455 

Principal of $733,865 and interest of $151,789 is due in the next fiscal year. 

39 

Balance 
June 30, 

2022 

780,480 
2,569,876 

0 
2,030,000 

929,500 
143,194 

1,170,000 

7,623,050 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(5) Long-Term Debt Payable and Other Obligation Payable, Continued 

The following schedule reflects the changes in long-term debt, as shown in the Enterprise (Natural Gas) 
Fund during the fiscal year 2022. 

Balance Balance 
July 1,2021 Additions Retirements June 30. 2022 

Bonds payable: 

Series 2020 530,250 0 29,750 5002500 
Total 530 250 0 29,750 500,500 

Principal of $31 ,500 and interest of $14,812 is due in the next fiscal year. 

Principal and interest requirements to maturity on all outstanding bonds, loans and obligations as of June 
30, 2022, are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30. 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Year Ending 
June 30. 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

2028-2032 
2033-2036 

Total 

Total 

General Obligation 
Principal lntere t 

18,700 1,549 
19 200 l 046 
19,700 -2il 
52.600 

Water and Sewer Department 

Principal Interest 

733,865 151,789 
746,528 142,369 
762,482 132,543 
781,743 121,140 
797,813 101,812 

3,146,113 235,432 
654.506 28.289 

'.Zi{5231Q50 213.374 

Natural Gas Department 

Principal Interest 

31,500 14,812 
33,250 13,867 
33,250 12,869 
35,000 11,872 
35,000 10,472 

133,000 5,636 

500.500 100;258 

The above bonds payable contain provisions that in the event of default, the lender can use any remedy 
allowed by state or federal law. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(6) Pension PJan 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan description. Employees of Hohenwald are provided a defined benefit pension plan through the Public 
Employee Retirement Plan, an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the TCRS. The TCRS 
was created by state statue under Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8, Chapters 34-37. The TCRS Board of 
Trustees is responsible for the proper operation and administration of the TCRS. The Tennessee Treasury 
Department, an agency in the legislative branch of state government, administers the plans of the TCRS. 
The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
http://treasury.tn.gov/Retirement/Boards-and-Governance/Reporting-and-Investment-Pol icies. 

Benefits provided. Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8, Chapter 34-37 established the benefit te1ms and can 
be amended only by the Tennessee General Assembly. The chieflegislative body may adopt the benefit 
terms permitted by statute. Members are eligible to retire with an unredu9ed benefit at age 60 with S years 
of service credit or after 30 years of service credit regardless of age. Benefits are determined by formula 
using the member's highest five consecutive year avernge compensation and the member's years of service 
credit. Reduced benefits for early Tetirement are avaj}able at age 55 and vested. Members vest wiU1 five 
years of service credit. Servic~related disability benefits are provided regardless of length of service. Five 
years of service is required for non-service-related disability eligibility. The service related and non-service­
related disability benefits are determined in the same manner as a service retirement benefit but are reduced 
10 percent and include projected service credits. A variety of death benefits are available under various 
eligibility criteria. 

Member and beneficiary armuitants are entitled to automatic cost of living adjustments (COLAs) after 
retirement. A COLA is granted each July for annuitants retired prior to the 2nd of July of the previous year. 
The COLA is based on the change in the consumer price index. (CPI) during the prior calendar year. capped 
at 3 percent, and applied to the current benefit. No COLA is granted if the change in the CPI is less than 
one-half percent. A one percent COLA is granted iftbe CPI change is between one-11alfpercent. A member 
who leaves employment may withdraw their employee contributions, plus any accumulated interest. 

Employees covered by benefit terms. At the measurement date of June 30, 2Q21, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 

Total 

41 

40 
33 
56 

129 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(6) Pension Plan, Continued 

Contributions. Contributions for employees are established in the tatute governing the TCRS and ma 
only be changed by the Tem1essee GeperaJ Assembly. Employe s contribute 5 percent of salary. H henwald 
makes emplo er contributions at the rate set by the Board f Trustees as determined by an actuarial 
valuation. For the year ended June 30 2022, employer c ntributions for Hohenwald were ($189 522 ba d 
on a rate of 4.44%) percent of covered payroll. By law employ r contributions are required lo be paid. he 
TCRS may intercept Hohenwald' s state shared taxes if required employer contributions ar not r mitted. 
Tbe employer actuarially determined contribution (ADC and member contributions are expected to 
finance th costs of benefits earned by member· during the year the cost of administration as well a. an 
amortized portion of any unfunded liability. 

Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Hohenwald net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Ac:tuarial assumptions. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 2.25 percent 

Salary increases Graded salary ranges from 8.72 to 3.44 percent based on age, including 
inflation averaging 4.00 percent. 

Investment rate of return 6.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation. 

Cost-of-Living Adjustment 2.125 percent 

Mortality rates were based on actual experience including an adjustment for some anticipated 
improvement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30 2021 actuarial valuation were based oo the results of an 
actuarial experience study performed for the period July 1. 2016 through June 30. 2020. The demographi 
assumptions were adjusted to more closely r fleet actual and expect d future experience. 

Changes of assumptions. In 2021 the following assumptions were changed: decreased inflation rate from 
2.50 percent to 2.25 percent; decreased the fovestment rate of return from 7.25 percent to 6.75 percent; 
decreased the cost-of-Ii ing adjustment from 2.25 percent to 2.125 percent; and modified mortality 
assumptions. • 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(6) Pension Plan, Continued 

The long-term expected rate of rettu-n on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of 
Trustees in conjunction with the June 30, 2020 actuarial experience study. A blend of future capital market 
projectio11s and historical market returns was used .in a build1ng-blockmethod in which a best-estimate of 
expected future real rates ofreturn (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
is developed for each major asset class. These best-estimates are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting tl1e expected future real rates by return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.25 percent. The best-estimates of geometric real rates of 
return and the TCRS investment policy target asset allocation for each major asset class are summarized in 
the following table: 

Asset class 
U.S. equity 
Developed market international equity 
Emerging market international equity 
Private equity and strategic lending 
U.S. fixed income 
Real Estate 
Short-term securities 

Total 

Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

4.88% 
5.37% 
6.09% 
6.57% 
1.20% 
4.38% 
0.00% 

Target Allocation 
31% 
14% 

4% 
20% 
20% 
10% 

1% 
100% 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of 
Trustees as 6.75 percent based on a blending of the three factors described above. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6. 75 percent. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the 
current rate and that contributions from Hohenwald will be made at the actuarially determined contribution 
rate pursuant to an actuarial valuation in accordance with the funding policy of the TCRS Board of Trustees 
and as required to be paid by state statute. Based on those assumptions. the pension plan's fiduciary .uet 
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of cun-ent active and 
inactive members. Therefore~, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

(6) Pension, ontinued 

Balance at 6/30/20 
Changes for the Year: 
Service Cost 
Interest 
Differences between expected and 
actual experience 
Changes in Benefit Terms 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions-employer 
Contributions-employees 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including refunds of 
employee contributions 
Administrative expense 
Other changes 
Net changes 
Balance at 6/30/21 

June 30, 2022 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Total Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

(a) 

$7 996,458 

170,047 
579,988 

(141,306) 

684,424 

(333,338) 

959,815 

$8,956,273 

Increase (Decrease) 
Plan 

Fiduciary Net 
Position 

(b) 

$8,168 382 

157,895 
108,893 

2,097,954 

(333,338) 
(5,034) 

2,026,370 

$10,194,752 

Net Pension 
Liability 
(Asset) 
(a) - (b) 

170,047 
579,988 

(141,306) 

684,424 
(157,895) 
(108,893) 

(2,097,954) 

5,034 

(1 066, 55) 

$(1238479) 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability (a set) ro han es in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
peusi n liability (asset) of Hohenwald cal ulated using the di count rate o.f 6.75 percent1 as welJ as hat the 
net pension liabilit (asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage•point 
l wer 5.75 percent) or 1-percentage-point hlgher 7.75 percent) than the current rate: 

Hohenwald's net pension 
Liability (asset) 

1% Decrease 
(5.75%) 

(26,947) 
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Current 
Discount Rate 

(6.}5%) 

(1,238,479) 

1% Increase 
(7.75%) 

(2,240,579) 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(6) Pension. Continued 

Pension Expense (income} and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

Pension expense. For the year ended June 30, 2022, Hoh~nwald recQgnized negative pension expense of 
($167,263). 

Deferred out.flows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. For the year ended June 30, 2022, 
Hohenwald reported deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources; 

D fe1Ted Outflows of Resources 

Differences between expected and 
Actual experience 
Net difference between projected and 
Actual earning on pension plan 
Investments 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions subsequent to the 
Measurement date of June 30, 2021 

Total 

22,057 

596,366 

189,522 
807.945 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 

1,119,372 

1.257.982 

The amounts shown above for 'Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2021 ', will 
be recognized as a reduction (increase) to net position liability (asset) in the following measurement 
period. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

(172,627) 
(169,077) 
(177,219) 
(211,148) 

90,520 

In the table shown above, positive amounts will increase pension expense while negative amounts will 
decrease pension expense. 

45 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

(7) Other Postemployment Benefits For Retiree Health Insurance 

Plan description - Employees of the City, who were hired prior to JuJy l , 2015, are provided with pre-65 
retiree health insurance benefits through the closed Local Government OEB Plan (LOOP) administered by 
the Tem1essee Department of Finance and Administration. Th.is plan is considered to be rnultiple•employer 
defined benefit plan that is used to provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). However, 
for accounting purposes, this plan will be treated as a single-employer plan. All eligible pre-65 retired 
employees and disability participants oflocal governments, who chose coverage, participate in the LOOP. 

Benefits provided -The City offers the LGOP to provide health insurance coverage to eligible pre-65 retirees 
and disabled participauts of local governments. Insurance coverage is the only postemployment benefit 
provided to retirees. An insurance committee created in accordance with TCA 8-27-701 establishes and 
amends the benefit terms of the LGOP. AU members have the option of choosing between the premier 
preferred provider orgau.izatfon (PPO), standard PPO, Jimited PPO or the wellness health-savings consumer­
driven health plan (CDHP) for 11ealthcare benefits. Retired plan members,. of the LGOP> receives the same 
plan benefits as active employees, at a blended premium rate that considers the cost of all participants. TI1is 
creates an implicit subsidy for retirees. Participating employers determine their own policy related to direct 
subsidies provided for the retiree premiums. The City does not directly subsidize and are only subject to the 
implicit. The LOOP is funded on a pay-as-you-go basjs and there are no assets accumulating in a trust that 
meets the criteria of paragraph 4 of GASB Statement NO. 75. 

Employees covered by benefit terms. At July 1, 2021, the following employees were covered by the benefit 
terms of the LGOP: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 

Total 

3 
0 

58 
22 

An insurance committee, created in accordance with TCA 8-27-701, establishes the required payments to 
the LGOP by member employers and employees through the blended premiums establisl1ed for active and 
retired employees. Claims liabilities of the plan are periodically computed using actuarial and statistical 
techniques to established premium rates. For the fiscal year ended JWle 30, 2022, the City paid $31,186 to 
the LGOP for OPEB benefits as they came due. 

46 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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{7) Other Postemployn1ent Benefits For Retiree Health Insurance, Continued 

Total OPEB Liability 

Actuarial assumptions-The total OPEB liabnity on the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, appUed to all the periods included in the 
measw-ement, unless otherwise specified. 

Inflation -

Salary increases -

Healthcare cost trend rates -

2.25% 

Graded salary ranges from 3.44 to 8.72 percent based on age, 
including inflation, averaging 4 percent. 

7.36% for pre-65 in 2021, decreasing annually over a 7-year period 
to an ultimate rate of 4.50%. 7.32% for post-65 in 2021, 
decreasing annually over a 8-year period to an ultimate rate of 
4.50% 

Retiree's share of benefit-related costs - Members are required to make monthly contributions in order 
to maintain their coverage. For the purpose of this valuation a 
weighted average ba.s been used wHh weights derived from the 
current distributions of members an1ong plans offered. 

Unless noted otherwise, the actuarial demographic assumptions used in the June 30, 202 .J , valuations were 
the same as those employed in the July 1, 2020 Pension Actuarial Valuation of the Tennessee Consolidated 
Retirement System (TCRS). These assumptions were developed by TCRS based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period Ju]y 1, 2016 - June 30, 2020. The demographic assumptions were 
adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected future experience. Mortality tables are used to measure 
the probabiUties of participants dying before and after retirement. The mortality rates employed in this 
valuation are taken from the PUB-2010 Headcount-Weighted Employee mortality table for General 
Employees for non-disabled pre-retirement mortality, with mortality improvement projected generationally 
with MP-2020 from 2010. Post-retirement tables are Headcount-Weighted Below Median Healthy 
Annuitant and adjusted with a 6% load for males and a 14% load for females, projected generationally from 
2010 with MP-2020. Mortality rates for impaired lives are the same as those used by TCRS and are taken 
from a gender distinct table published in the IRS Ruling 96-7 for disabled lives with a 10% load, projected 
generationally from 2018 with MP-2020. 

Discount rate-The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.16 percent. This rate reflects 
the interest rate derived from yields on a 20-year, tax exempt general obligation municipal bonds, prevailing 
on the measurement date, with an average rating of AA/Aa as shown on the Bond Buyer 20-year Municipal 
GO AA index. 
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(7) Other Postemploymcnt Benefit For Retiree Health Cnsurance, Continued 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB liability ~ beginning balance 

Changes for tbe year: 

Service cost 

Interest 

Changes of benefit tenns 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Change in assumptions 

Be.nefit payments 

Net changes 

Total OPEB liability - ending balance 

Total OPES 
Liability 

(a) 

$ 490 777 

$ 41, 195 

$ 11 ,536 

$ (19,010) 

$ 6,014 

$ (168,037) 

$ (20,076) 

$ (148,378) 

$342,399 

Changes in assumptions-The discount rate was changed from 2.21 % as of the beginning of the measurement 
period to 2.16% as of June 30 2021. This change in assumption decreased the total OPEB liability. Other 
changes in assumptions in lude adjustments to initial per apita costs and health trend rate.s. 

Sensitivity of to/al OPEB liabillt to changes in the discount rate-Th following present the total PEB 
Liability related to tbe LGOP as well as what the total OPEB liability would be ifit were calculated using a 
di count rate that is I-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage higher than the current discount rate. 

t% Decrease 
(1.16%) 

$365,236 

Current Discount 
Rate Assumption 

( __ }6%) 
$342,399 

1% Increase 
(3.16%) 
$320,731 

ensitivity of total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare co 1 trend rate - The following pre ents th 
iotal OPEB liability related to the LGOP, as well as what the total OPEB liability wouJd be if it were 
calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is I-percentage-lower or I-percentage-point-higher than 
the current healthcare cost trend rate. 

Current Healthcare Cost 
1 o/o Decrease rend Rat Assumption 1 % In rease 

(6.36/6.32% Decreasing to 3.50%) (7.36/7.32% decreasing to 4.50%) (8.36/8.32% decrea iag t 5.5_0%) 
$308 734 $342,399 $381,724 
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June 30, 2022 

(7) Other Postemplovment Benefits For Retire Health Insurance, Continned 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

OPEB Expense - For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City of Hohenwald recognized negative OPEB 
expense of $(1,598). 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources - For the year ended June 30 2022, the 
City of Hob nwald reported deferred outflow of re ources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB benefits in the LGOP from the foJlowing our es: 

Differences between expected and 
Actual experience 
Changes in as umptions 
Employer pa ments subsequent to 
The mea urement date 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Total 

36,150 
30,667 

1,186 
98,003 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

127,266 
148,992 

276. 58 

The amounts shown above for "Employer payments subsequent to the measurement date" will be recognized 
as a reduction to total OPEB liability in the following measurement period. 

Amounts r ported as defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in emplo ee benefit e pense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
Thereafter 

(35;319) 
(35,319) 
(35,319) 
(36,649) 
(43,883) 
(22 952) 

In the table shown above, positive amounts will increase employee benefit expense while negative 
amounts will decrease employee benefit expense. 

Plan A sets 
There are no plan assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. 
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June 30, 2022 

(8) Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation: 
The City attorney estimates that potential claims against the City resulting from such litigation will not 
materially affect the financial statements of the City at yearend. 

Grants: 
Amounts received from Granter agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by Grantor agencies. 
principally the Federal government. Any disallowed! claims including amounts already collected, could 
become a liability of the applicable fund. 

(9) Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks to general liability and properly and casualty losses. The City has 
decided it is more economically feasible to be in a public entity risk pool as opposed to purchasing 
commercial insurance for general liability and property and casualty coverage. The City participates in the 
Public Entity Partners (formerly TML Insurance Pool), which is a public entity risk pool established by lhe 
Tennessee Municipal League, an association of member cities. The City pays an annual premium to the PEP 
for its general liability and property and casualty insurance coverage. The pool reinsures through 
commercial insurance companies. The City has not had claims in excess of insurance coverage during the 
last three years. 

(10) Closure and Post Closure Care Cost 

State and Federal laws and regulations requit'e the City to place a final cover on its landfill site when it slops 
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years 
after closure. The accrued landfilJ closure and post-closw·e care cost at yearend, was $446\880. This 
represents estimated post-closure cost, based on engineer's projections. 
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CITY OFHOHENW ALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related 
Ratios Based on Participation in the Public Employee Pension Plan ofTCRS 

Last Fiscal Year ending June 30 

20t• 2015 2.016 2017 

Tot•I pension liability (asset) 
Service cosr s )5&,309 s 165,7 13 s t63,l92 s 1&6,867 
lnteiest 413 ,232 s 431,408 s 466,025 $ 486,455 
Chilllges in benefit terms $ s 
Dilfcrcnc~ between actual & expected experience s (41,042) s 198,147 s ( 18,598) s (90,700) 
Chilllge of assumptions s 156,093 
Bene6t payments, including refunds of employee contributions Ji (2'12.2,41 S 1318.880! !341.497) s (380.2R81 
Net change in total pension liability (asset) s 258,265 s 476,388 s 267,122 s 358,427 
Total pension liability (asset}-beginning S 5.487.569 S.7,151&3-l s .llUU s 6,4 IJ ··M 
total pcruion liabiUty (asset)-ending (a) S 5,745.834 56.222.221 s 6;1~9.344 s 6.847,771 

Piao fidutiary net position 
Conlributions-employCI' s 165,009 $ 136.520 s 146,966 s 142,253 
Conlribucions-employee s 90,374 s 94,182 s 112,67S $ 98,106 
Net investment income s 811,830 s 188,746 s 165,183 s 711 ,219 
Benefit payments, including refunds or employee contributions $ (272,234) S (318,880) s (343,497) s (380,288) 
Administrative expense s (2,166) $ (2,994) s (4,402) s (4,625) 
Other 28j86 s 
Nd change in plan fiduciary ntt position s 858,81J s 97,S74 s 105,31 l s 566,665 

Piao fiduciary net posilion-bt,glnning 128617M S 6.145,527 s 6.243,101 .348,412 
Piao liduci1ry net position-eo~ing (b) S 6.145.527 S 6.2~3.101 s 6.348,412 s 6.915.077 

2.018 2019 

s 180,689 s 17&,474 $ 

s 497,965 524,198 s 
s s $ 

s 14,358 s 43, 179 $ 

s s 
s I l 9.966) !]37,9-52! 
s 373,046 s 407,899 $ 
s 6,8"7,771 S 7.120.817 s 
s .220,817 S 7.628,716 s 

s 147,152 s 152,141 s 
s 101,484 s 104,925 s 
s 570,810 s S4R,493 s 
s (319,966 s (337,952) s 
s (5,338) $ (4,937) s 
s s s 
s 494,142 $ 461,670 $ 

$ 6.9tS,077 S 7,409.![9 s 
s 7409.219 S 7,871.889 $ 

Net l,'eruion Liability (assct)-cnding (a) • (b) /399,693) s (20.S79) l40.9l2 s (67.)061 S (188.402) S (243.173) S 

Plan liduti111 nd position ■s a ptrcentage of total pension liabi.lity 106.96% 100,.34~ 97.83% 100.98% 

Covered payroll $ 1,791,578 S 1,883,029 $ 2,027,109 s 1,962,[09 

Ncl pension liability (asset) u a pencntagc or covrnd payroll -22.31% -1.l lo/o 6.95% -3 ,43¾ 

fm11g,:s o/" rum{'rt/1111. In 2021, n10unlJ r~t)(lno:d OS cllllll~~ of ssumptions resulted from changes to the inflation rate, investment rate of return, 
co ,af,llv ng h<(/ustmt,11, ,rohny IJl'Owlh ond mo1tlllil)I improvcmenu;. ln 2017. amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from changes to 
the inDation rate, invcstmeut rate ofretum, cosl-<lf-living adj11Slmcot, salary growth and mortality improvements. 

GASB 68 requires a I 0-year schedule for this data to be presented staning with the imp)ememation ofGASB 68. The infonru,.tion in this schedule 
is not required 10 be presented retroactively prior to the implentarion date. Please refer to prov1ousty supplied data from TCRS GASB website for 
prior yeus' data, if needed. 

102.61% 103.19% 

2,029,678 S 2,098,496 $ 

-9,28% •l l.59% 

2020 20ll 

181,842 s 170,047 
553,294 s 579,988 

s 
(9,566) s (141,306) 

684,424 
pn,s111i s !',H3Jl8) 
367,742 s 959,815 

7,628.7 16 7.996.,15 
7.996,458 s 8.956.21J 

160,470 s 1S7,K9 S 
110,669 s 108,893 
388,178 s 2,097,954 

(357,828) $ (333,338) 
(4,996) s (5,034) 

s 
296,493 s 2,026,37(1 

7,871,889 R,168.382 
8,168,382 s 10,l?U l 

(171.9241 $ (L238,479) 

102. IS'Yo 113.83% 

2,213,371 s 2,177,856 

-7.77% -56,87% 



CITY Oli' flOHE VALO,TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Conrrlbulion, lla,.d on Participation in th• 
Public Emplayoe Pention P.lan ofTCltS 

For ch" VHrEnded JuneJ0,2021 

Zill l9.1Ji 1.!ll§ 2017 lli.!! 

Actuarially determined conl(ibUllon 165,009 136,432 146,966 124,594 97,019 

Contributions In relation to the 
aduarially detem,jned cMtributJon 165 009 136,432 146966 142 253 147,152 

Contribution deficiency (excess) .so $0 $0 (S17 ,65JIL _t,SS0.133) 

Covered~mployee payroll 1 791 578 1 802112 2,027,109 

Contributions as a pe!Cllntage 
covered-employee payroll 9.21",!, T57% 7.25% 

GASB 68 roqui"'s 10-y .. , S<:h<<iule for this data to be: prc.cntod sWtins wilh the implt!llj!n!Jltion of GASll 68 The 
tnfoll!latlon in !1,15 schedule is not reqtri;td to be presented rciroaotively prior to the 1111pl,menr,nion date Plea.so ror.r 
,o previou,ly supplied data fm•n 11,e TCRS GASB website for pnoc ~••n;' dolll, in n""dcd. 

Notes to Schedule 

ValualiOn date; Actuarially determined contribution rates for fiscal year 2022 were calculated based on \he 
June 30, 2020 actuarial val~aUon. 

Methods and assumptions used lo delerm ine conlr!butlon rates: 

Actuarial cost melhod 

AmofliZa.tion method 

Remainfng amortt~tlon period 

Asset valuallon 

trtflaOon 

Salary increases 

tnvestmem Rate or Retum 

Re~rel]lenl age 

Monality 

Cost of LMng Adjustments 

Entry Age Normal 

level dollar, closed (not to ex~d 20 years) 

Vanes by Year 

10-year smoothed Within a 20 percent conidor lo mar1c.el value 

2.5 percent 

Graded salary ranges from 8.72 to 3.44 percent based on 
age, including Inflation, averaging 4.00 percent 

7.25 percent. net of]nvestment experise, including [nfiatlcn 

Pattern of rellrement determined by experience slUdy 

Customized lable based on actual e>eperience lnc1udlng an 
adjustment for some anUcipal<!d Improvement 

2.25 percent 

1,962,109 

6.35% 

Change., uf a.5'1Jmptmn,: ln 2017, I.he follo,•ing uso.mption.s wen, <hanged ; d<ereas•d 111flallon rate, from ; 00 percenno 2.50 perccnl; 
~ecns,se<I the 1nvcs1mcn1 rnte of mum fmrn 7..50 \?C<Cent 10 7 25 pcn:enr, decreased the t<»t-of-\ivlfll! adjostmtnl frnrn l 50 porocnt 10 :I. 25 pet<<Jtt, 
d<Gre!S<ed o,l•cy growlh graded rangt.s from an ••~rage <1f ~ '21 percent to 111 •""rage of4 00 perc~nt. arid mpdiri., monality as,omptiono 
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2,029,678 

4.78% 

~ Wall ZQZJ. 2022 

109,961 98,274 96,697 189,522 

152 14"1 160,470 157,895 169,522 

($42 ,180) ($62,196) ($61 ,198) $0 

2,096,496 2,213,371 2,177,856 2,614,097 

5.24% 4.44% 4.44'/4 7.25% 



Total OPES liability 

Service Cost 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Required Supplementary Information- OPEB 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Measurement Year ending June 30 

2018 2019 2020 

$ 27,829 $ 26,514 $ 17,373 
$ 9,648 $ 12,115 $ 5,022 

$ 

$ Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 

Change ln Benefit Terms $ $ (38,709) $ (10,715) $ 

Difference between expected and actual experience 

of the Total OPEB liability $ 

$ (13 ,543) 
$ (187,730) 
$ 5,009 

$ 55,233 $ 
$ 5,618 $ 

2021 

15,652 $ 

7,018 $ 
280,882 $ 

(28,014) $ 

35,530 $ Changes in assumptions and other inputs 

Benefit payments $ (16 203) $ (9,268) $ (10,075) $ (9,101) $ 

Net change In Total OPES Liability 

Total OPEB Liability · Beginning 

Total OPEB Liability - Ending 

Estimated Covered -Employee Payroll 

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered- Employee Payroll 

Notes to Schedule 

$ 7 731 
$ 310,692 
$ 318,423 

NIA 

NIA 

$ (192 069) $ 

$ 318,423 $ 

$ 126,354 $ 

N/A $ 

NIA 

62,456 $ 301,967 
126 354 $ 188,810 
188,810 $ 490,777 

2,098,496 $ 2,108,456 

9.00% 23.28% 

Note : Tllere are no assets accumulating, in a trustthat meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, related to this OPEB plan. 
The amounts reported for each fiscal year were detennined as of the prior fiscal year-end. The amounts reported for each fiscal year were 
detertnined as of the prior fiscal year-end. This schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed 

as they become available. 
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$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

2022 

41 ,195 
11,536 

(19,010) 

6,014 
(168,037) 

(20,076) 
(148,378} 
490,777 
342,399 

2,614,097 

13.10% 



SUPPLEMENT AL 

INFORMATION 



Descrlptlon 

Land 

Buildings 

Improvements 

Vehicles 

Equipment 
Total Capital Assets 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of the Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets By Type 

June 30, 2022 

Balance 
July 1, 2021 Additions Disposals 

$821 ,582 35,000 0 

3,634,115 0 45,000 

2,402,881 39,239 0 

1,453,928 47,391 14,990 

1,475.553 164,020 69,500 
$9,788,059 285,650 129,490 
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Balance 
June 30, 2022 

856,582 

3,589,115 

2.442,120 

1.486,329 

1,570,073 
9,944,219 



Description 

General Government 

Police Department 

Fire Department 

Public Works 

Garage 

Park 

Golf course 

Animal control 

Solid Waste 

Cemetery 
Total Assets 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Capital Assets Used In the Operation of the Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Capital Assets By Function and Actlvlty 

June 30, 2022 

Land Bu !dings Improvements 

$646,726 3,424,870 413,709 

0 1,150 0 

0 0 0 

0 56,085 1,685,116 

0 53,067 0 

0 7,735 340,126 

148,312 35,709 0 

0 10,499 0 

33,475 0 0 

28.069 0 3,1 69 
$856,582 3,5891115 2.442.120 
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Vehicles and 
Equipment Total 

469,698 4,955,003 

561,191 562,341 

894,922 894,922 

355,374 2,096,575 

24,175 77,242 

7,030 354,891 

288,247 472,268 

0 10,499 

455,765 489,240 

0 31,238 
3,056,402 9,944,219 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Certificate of Deposits 
All Funds 

General Fund: 
Demand deposits 

Total General Fund 

State Street Aid Fund - demand deposit 

Drug Fund • demand deposit 

Water and Sewer Fund: 
Demand deposits 

Total Water and Sewer Fund 

Natural Gas Fund: 
Demand deposits 

Total Natural Gas Fund 

Solid Waste Fund 

June 30, 2022 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents - All Funds 
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Carrying 
Value 

$3,650,469 

3,650,469 

110,858 

29,541 

422,981 

422,981 

2,290,834 

88,565 

$6,593,248 



Tax Year 
2022 $ 
2021 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 

Tax Year 
2022 $ 
2021 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Collections 
Balance and Changes 

Jull 1, 2021 Levl in Assessment 
750,333 0 

723,201 0 687,847 
39,662 0 28,455 
15,365 0 8,465 
2,057 0 1,518 
1,265 0 1,265 

781 ,550 750,333 727,550 

Tax 
Adjustment snd 

Tax Rate Tax Levy Collections 
1.1300 $ 750,333 $ 0 
1.1253 723,201 687,847 
1.1253 709,912 698,705 

1.35 723,221 716,321 
1.50 757,142 756,603 
1.50 751,654 751 ,654 
1.50 747,739 747,739 
1.50 736,929 736,929 
1.50 735,112 735,112 
1.50 745,467 745,467 
1.07 505,665 505,665 

All deliquent taxes have been turned over to the County. 
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Balance 
June 30, 2022 

750,333 
35,354 
11 ,207 
6,900 

539 
0 

804,333 

Outstanding 
Taxes 

$ 750,333 
35,354 
11 ,207 
6,900 

539 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 



Year 

2023 $ 
2024 
2025 

$ 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Debt Service Requirements­
General Obltgation Debt 

June 30, 2022 

Capital Outlay Notes 
First TN - Solid Waste Total 

Principal Interest Principal 

18,700 1,549 18,700 
19,200 1,046 19,200 
19,700 531 19,700 

57,600 3,1.26 57,600 
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Interest 

1,549 
1,046 

531 

3,126 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Debt Service Requirement$ 
Water and Sewer Fund 

June 30, 2022 

Water and Sewer Revenue Water and Sewer Revenue 
and Tax Refurnllng Bon<! State Revolving Loan and Tu Refunding Bol'ld Water and Sewer Revenue Equipment Aequlsltio~ CON State of Tennessee 

Series2021 CGA-2008--219 Series2019 Series 2020 Series2022 DW-2016-167 TOTAL TOTAL 
'.ID[ Princleal Interest Princif!al Interest Princl!!al lnieresl Pr1nci~I Interest Princieal Interest PrincTeal Interest Princieal Interest 

2023 $ 70,000 29,250 254,776 35,408 270,000 40,600 58,500 27,507 70,480 17,701 10,109 1,323 733,865 151,789 
2024 70.000 27,B50 258,467 31,717 275,000 38,500 61,750 25,752 71 ,000 17,263 10,311 1,297 746,528 142,369 
2025 75,000 26,025 262,215 27,969 280,000 37,850 61.750 23,900 73,000 15,52.8 10,517 1,271 762,4112 132,543 
2026 75.000 23,775 266,016 24,168 290,000 36,150 65,000 22,047 75.000 13,754 10.727 1..246 781,743 121.140 
2027 80,000 21,450 2W,871 20,313 295,000 27,450 65,000 19,447 77,000 11 ,931 10,942 1.221 797,813 101 ,812 
2028 80,000 19,050 273,784 16.400 305,000 18,600 68,250 16,717 79,000 10,060 11,161 1,197 817,195 82,024 
2029 80,000 16,650 277,752 12.432 315,000 9,450 71.500 14,117 61 ,000 8,141 11,384 1,173 836,636 81 ,963 
2030 85,000 14,1 75 281 ,778 8.406 74)50 11,:,!57 B3,000 6,173 11 ,612 1,150 636,140 41 ,1 61 
2031' 90,000 11 ,550 285,863 4,321 78,000 8,267 B5,000 4,156 11,844 1,1 27 550,707 29,421 
2032 90,000 8,850 139,.354 1,112 78,000 6,707 86,000 3,090 12,081 1,104 405,435 20,863 
2033 90,000 6 ,QOO 81 ,250 5 ,1 47 12,323 1,082 183,573 12,829 
2034 95,000 4,750 81.250 3,522 12,569 1,060 188,819 9,332 
2035 95,000 2,850 84,500 1,796 7,614 532 187,114 5,178 
2036 95,000 950 95,000 950 

1,1701000 213 775 $ 2,569,876 182,246 2,0301000 206,600 929,500 186,1 83 780.480 ?07 787 143,194 14,783 7,623,050 913,374 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Debt Service Requirements 
Natural Gas Fund 

June 30, 2022 

Natural Gas Revenue 
Series 2020 

Principal Interest 

Year 
2023 $ 31,500 14,812 
2024 33 ,250 13,867 
2025 33,250 12,869 
2026 35,000 11 ,872 
2027 35 ,000 10,472 
2028 36 ,750 9,002 
2029 38,500 7,602 
2030 40,250 6,062 
2031 42,000 4,452 
2032 42 ,000 3,612 
2033 43,750 2,772 
2034 43,750 1,897 
2035 45,500 967 

$ 500,500 
= ======== 

100,258 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Changes in Long-term Debt by individual Issue 

June 30, 2022 

Paid and/or 
Original Date Last Issued Matured Refunded 
Amount interest of Maturity Outstanding During During During Outstanding 
ofissue Rate Issue Date 7/1/2021 Period Period Period 6/30/2022 

Business-Type Activities 

Water and Sewer 

Stale Revolving 4,948,210 1.44% 2012 12/31/2031 $2,820,637 $ 250,761 $2,569,876 
Serles 2011 1,900,000 ·1 .70% 2011 2/28/2036 $1,230,000 $1,230,000 $0 
OW-2016-167 400,000 0.90% 2008 10/31/2033 $ 152,638 $ 9,444 $143,194 
Series 2022 780,480 2-3% 2022 6/30/2032 $ 780,480 $ $780,480 
Series 2019 2,620,000 2-3% 2019 5/1/2029 $2,295,000 $ 265,000 $2,030,000 
Serles 2020 1,040,000 2.25% 2020 6/30/2035 $ 984,750 $ 55,250 $929,500 
Series 2021 1,170,000 •2.00% 2021 6/30/2036 $ 1.170,000 $ $1 ,170,000 

Total Notes Payable $7,483,025 $1 ,950.480 $1 ,810,455 $ 7.623.050 

Natural Gas 

Series2020 1,000,000 2.25% 2020 6/30/2035 $ 530,250 $ 29,750 $500,500 

Governmental Activities 

CON - Solid Waste 142,360· 1.75% 2016 4/30/2025 $ 75 800 $ 18200 $57,600 
$ 

Total Notes Payable $ 75,800 $ $ 18,200 $ $ 57,600 

*Variable rate loan 
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Sewer Rates- Residential 

Up to 2,000 gallons 

Over 2,000 gallons 

Water Rales- Residential 

Up lo 2,000 gallons 

Over 2,000 gallons 

Natural Gas Rates - Residential 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Utility Rates In Force 

June 30, 2022 

Inside City 

$23.58 Minimum charge 

$4.00 per 1,000 gallons 

Inside City 

$15.72 Minimum charge 

$3.07 per 1',000 gallons 

Per 1,000 MCF's - varies each month based on natural gas costs. 

Outside City 

$51 .78 Minimum charge 

$6.90 per 1,000 gallons 

Outsfde City 

$34.52 Minimum charge 

$4.60 per 1,000 gallons 

There were approximately 3,550 water customers, approximately 1,565 sewer customers and approximatley 
2,325 natural gas customers at yearend. 
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State 
CFDA Grant 

Number Number 

State Program: 

NIA Z·21THSO128 

N/A TN Cares ACT 

N/A Direct Grant 

Federal Program: 

21.027 American Rescue Plan Act 

14.239 HOME Grant 

This schedule prepared on the accrua) basis of accounting. 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Federal and State Financial Assista"'ce 

For the. Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Receivable 
(Deferred} 
Balance 

Grantor Agency June 30, 2021 

Tennessee Department 
of Transportation o 

Tennessee Department of 
Finance 0 

Tennessee Department of 
Finance 0 

Total State 0 

US Department oFTreasucy 
thru the State of Tennessee $0 

US Department of Transportation 
thru Tennessee Housing Development 0 

Agency 

Total Federal 0 

Total Federal and State. 0 
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Receivable 
(Deferred) 

Grant Other Grant Balance 
Receipts Receipts Expenditures June 301 2022 

4,147 o 4147 0 

32,345 0 32,345 0 

56,717 0 56,717 D 

93,,Z09 0 93,209 0 

565,684 0 0 ($565,684) 

62,902 0 62,902 0 

628,586 0 62,902 {565,684} 

721 1795 0 156,111 {565,684) 



COMPLIANCE AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL 



JOHN R. POOLE, CPA 
CERTIF"IED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

l 34 NORTHLAKE DRIVE 

HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075 

INDEPENDE T AUDITOR S REPORT ON 

(61 5) B22-41 77 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FIN ClAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLlANCE 
AND OTBER MATTERS BA ED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEME T 

PERFORMED IN A CORDA CE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Hohenwald, Tennessee 
Hohenwald, Tennessee 

I have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United State. 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits ,contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
govemmental activities, the business-type activities each major fund of the City of Hohenwald 
as of an_d for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City of Hohenwald' s basic financial statements, and have issued 
a report thereon dated December 23, 2022. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements I considered tb it of 
.Hohenwald s internaJ control over financiaJ reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the financial stat ments but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Hohen ald's internal control. Accordingly, I do not express an 
opinion on the·effectiveness of the City ofHohenwald's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the de ign or operation of a control doe not allo 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing th ir assigned functions to 
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internaJ control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatem nt of the entity's financial statements will not b prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficienc , or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention byihose charged with governance. 

My consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and wa not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given 1hese limitations, during the 
audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that I consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Otber Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Hohenwald's financial 
statements are free of material mjsstatement, f performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations. contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of Lhe financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opiruon on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of the 
audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of the tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of the testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of lbat testing, and not to provide an opinion on tl1e effectiveness of 
the entity' s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stru1dards in considering the entity ' s 
internal control and compliance. Acco(dingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

December 23, 2022 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Disposition of Prior Year Comments 

June 30, 2022 

There were no findings in the prior year. 
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